
~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 
If any disabled person needs any type of accommodation, please notify 

Central Yavapai Fire District at (928) 772-7711 prior to the scheduled meeting time. 
Page 1 of 1 

NOTICE OF MEETING 
 

Pursuant to A.R.S. §38-431.02, notice is hereby given to the members of the Central Yavapai Fire District Board of 
Directors and the general public that the Central Yavapai Fire District will hold a meeting open to the public on Tuesday, 
December 20, 2016 at 4:00 p.m. The meeting will be held at Central Arizona Fire and Medical Authority, Station 61, 
1133 W. Road 3 North, Chino Valley, Arizona. The Board may vote to go into Executive Session on any agenda item, 
pursuant to A.R.S. §38-431.03(A)(3) for discussion and consultation for legal advice with the District’s Attorney on matters 
as set forth in the agenda item. The following topics and any variables thereto, will be subject to Board consideration, 
discussion, approval, or other action. All items are set for possible action. 

AGENDA 

1. CALL TO ORDER / ROLL CALL OF BOARD MEMBERS 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

3. PRESENTATIONS 

A. Exiting Board Member Appreciation - Steve Rutherford, Bob Page 

4. SWEAR IN AND SEAT BOARD MEMBERS 

5. NEW BUSINESS 

A. Appoint Fire Board Chairperson and Clerk 

B. Discuss and Appoint Board Members to Central Arizona Fire and Medical Authority (CAFMA) Board of Directors 

6. CALL TO THE PUBLIC 
Those wishing to address the Central Yavapai Fire District Board need not request permission in advance. However, 
we ask that you complete a Call To Public Form for the record. The Board is not permitted to discuss or take action on 
any item raised in the Call to the Public due to restrictions of the Open Meeting Law; however, individual Board 
members may be permitted to respond to criticism directed to them. Otherwise, the Board may direct the staff to 
review the matter or the matter may be placed on a future agenda. Individuals may be limited to speak for three (3) 
minutes with a total of 30 minutes allotted for Call to the Public per meeting. 

7. CONSENT AGENDA 
All matters listed under consent agenda are considered to be routine by the Central Yavapai Fire District Board and 
will be enacted by one motion. There will be no separate discussion on these items. If discussion is desired, that item 
will be removed from the consent agenda and will be considered separately for discussion and possible action. 

A. Approve Regular Session Minutes - November 15, 2016 
B. Approve Executive Session Minutes - November 15, 2016 
C. Approve Special Session Minutes - November 22, 2016 
D. Approve General Fund Financial Statements 
E. Approve Bond Debt Service Financial Statements 
F. Transfer November Revenues from Central Yavapai Fire District to Central Arizona Fire and Medical Authority in 

the Amount of $3,230,456.14 
G. Approve Amendments to Fire Board Policy 3.5 Board Officer Duties 

8. NEW BUSINESS CONTINUED 

A. Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2016 Audit Presentation by HintonBurdick CPAs & Advisors; Discussion and 
Possible Acceptance of Audit 

9. VOTE TO GO INTO EXECUTIVE SESSION 

A. Legal Advice Pursuant to A.RS. §38-431.03(A)(3) and Instruction to District Legal Counsel Pursuant to A.RS. 
§38-431.03(A)(4) Re: Training Center Drainage 

10. OLD BUSINESS 

A. Discussion and Possible Action Related to Training Center Drainage Issues 

11. ADJOURNMENT 



TO:  Fire Board 
FROM: Chief Freitag 
DATE:  December 12, 2016 
  
SUBJECT: SWEAR IN AND SEAT BOARD MEMBERS 

 
The Fire Board terms expired for Steve Rutherford, Bob Page, and ViciLee Jacobs; 
however, only Director Jacobs sought re-election. ViciLee Jacobs, Jeff Wasowicz, and 
Matt Zurcher were elected as Central Yavapai Fire District Board Members on 
November 8, 2016. These members will be sworn in and seated on the Board.  
 

Oath of Office 
 

Please raise your right hand 
 
I, state your name, do solemnly swear (or affirm) that I will support the Constitution of 

the United States and the Constitution and laws of the State of Arizona, that I will bear 

true faith and allegiance to the same and defend them against all enemies, foreign and 

domestic, and that I will faithfully and impartially discharge the duties of the office of 

Central Yavapai Fire District Board Member, according to the best of my ability, so help 

me God (or so I do affirm). 

 
If you have any questions, please call Assistant Chief of Administration Tharp or myself 
at 772-7711. 
  

 

Page 3 of 87



TO:  Fire Board 
FROM: Chief Freitag 
DATE:  December 12, 2016 
  
SUBJECT: APPOINT FIRE BOARD CHAIRPERSON AND CLERK 

 
The Fire Board needs to appoint a Chairperson and Clerk for a one-year term. The 
updated Fire Board Policy 3.5 Board Officer Duties is included under the consent 
agenda. 
 
Suggested Motions: 
 

Appoint _______ as Chairperson of the Board 
 
Appoint _______ as Clerk of the Board 

 
If you have any questions, please call Assistant Chief of Administration Tharp or myself 
at 772-7711. 

Page 4 of 87



 

CENTRAL YAVAPAI FIRE DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

REGULAR SESSION 
 

November 15, 2016 
 

MINUTES 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER / ROLL CALL OF BOARD MEMBERS 
 

Board Chairman Rutherford called the Central Yavapai Fire District (CYFD) Board of 
Director's regular session meeting to order on Tuesday, November 15, 2016 at 4:00 
p.m. at the Town of Prescott Valley, Library Auditorium, 7401 E. Civic Circle, 
Prescott Valley, Arizona. 
 
Members Present: Board Chairman Steve Rutherford, Board Clerk Bob Page, 

Board Members Darlene Packard, ViciLee Jacobs, Tom Steele 
 

Members Absent: None 
 

Staff: Fire Chief Scott Freitag, Assistant Chief of Administration Dave 
Tharp, Administrative Manager Susanne Dixson, Administrative 
Assistant III Laura Mowrer 

 
Others in Attendance:  Attorney Nick Cornelius 

 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

Chairman Rutherford led the recitation of the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
3. CALL TO THE PUBLIC 

 
Chairman Rutherford opened the meeting for public comments. No public 
comments. 
 
Chairman Rutherford expressed his appreciation for all that ran for office. 
 

4. CONSENT AGENDA 
All matters listed under consent agenda are considered to be routine by the Central 
Yavapai Fire District Board and will be enacted by one motion. There will be no 
separate discussion on these items. If discussion is desired, that item will be 
removed from the consent agenda and will be considered separately for discussion 
and possible action. 

 
A. Approve Regular Session Minutes - October 18, 2016 
B. Approve Executive Session Minutes - October 18, 2016 

Page 5 of 87



Central Yavapai Fire District 
Regular Session – November 15, 2016 

Page 2 
 

C. Approve General Fund Financial Statements 
D. Approve Bond Debt Service Financial Statements 
E. Transfer October Revenues from Central Yavapai Fire District to Central Arizona 

Fire and Medical Authority in the Amount of $3,676,329.37 
 

Board Member Packard made a motion to approve Consent Agenda Items A 
through E. Board Member Steele seconded the motion. MOTION CARRIED 

 
AYES:  Jacobs, Packard, Page, Rutherford, Steele 
NAYS:  None 

 
5. NEW BUSINESS 
 

A. Discussion and Possible Action Regarding the Canvass of Election Results 
 

Chairman Rutherford stated that a special Board meeting needs to be held to 
canvass the election results. 
 
Chief Tharp explained that the Fire Board’s approval of the election results must 
be submitted to the Board of Supervisors by November 28, 2016.  
 
Attorney Cornelius confirmed that a Board quorum is required; however, some 
may attend telephonically.  
 
The Board was in agreement to hold a special Board meeting to canvass the 
election results on November 22, 2016 at 10:00 a.m. with the location to be 
determined.  
 

6. VOTE TO GO INTO EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 

A. Legal Advice Pursuant to A.R.S. §38-431.03(A)(3) and Instruction to District 
Legal Counsel Pursuant to A.R.S. §38-431.03(A)(4) Re: Training Center 
Drainage 
 

B. Legal Advice Pursuant to A.R.S. §38-431.03(A)(3) Regarding Serial Meeting 
Communications 
 

C. Legal Advice Pursuant to A.R.S. §38-431.03(A)(3) Regarding Concerns Brought 
Forward in Communications from Director Jacobs 

 
Board Member Packard made a motion to go into Executive Session. Board 
Clerk Page seconded the motion. MOTION CARRIED 
 
AYES:  Jacobs, Packard, Page, Rutherford, Steele 
NAYS:  None 

Page 6 of 87



Central Yavapai Fire District 
Regular Session – November 15, 2016 

Page 3 
 

 
Chairman Rutherford recessed the public meeting to go into Executive Session at 4:09 
p.m. 

 
Board Clerk Page made a motion to reconvene into open session. Board 
Member Steele seconded the motion. MOTION CARRIED 
 
AYES:  Jacobs, Packard, Page, Rutherford, Steele 
NAYS:  None 

 
Chairman Rutherford reconvened the open session at 4:44 p.m. 
 
7. NEW BUSINESS CONTINUED 

 
A. Discussion and Any Necessary Action Regarding Serial Meeting 

Communications 
 
No action required. 
 

B. Discussion and Any Necessary Action Regarding Concerns Brought Forward in 
Communications from Director Jacobs 
 
No action required. 
 
Chairman Rutherford expressed his appreciation for the staff of Central Yavapai 
Fire District and  stated that he has not had an issue with performance or 
communications of Chief Freitag. He stated that Chief Freitag holds people 
accountable and commended Chief Freitag. 
 

8. OLD BUSINESS 
 

A. Discussion and Possible Action Related to Training Center Drainage Issues 
 
No direction required. 
 

9. ADJOURNMENT 
 

Board Member Packard made a motion to adjourn. Board Member Steele seconded 
the motion. MOTION CARRIED 
 
AYES:  Jacobs, Packard, Page, Rutherford, Steele 
NAYS:  None 

 
Chairman Rutherford adjourned the meeting at 4:46 p.m. 
 

Page 7 of 87



Central Yavapai Fire District 
Regular Session – November 15, 2016 

Page 4 
 

 
   
 Date 
 
   
 Bob Page, Board Clerk 

Page 8 of 87



 

 

CENTRAL YAVAPAI FIRE DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

SPECIAL SESSION 
 

November 22, 2016 
 

MINUTES 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER / ROLL CALL OF BOARD MEMBERS 
 

Board Chairman Rutherford called the Central Yavapai Fire District (CYFD) Board of 
Director's special session to order on Tuesday, November 22, 2016 at 10:01 a.m. at 
the Town of Prescott Valley, Library Auditorium, 7401 E. Civic Circle, Prescott 
Valley, Arizona. 
 
Members Present: Board Chairman Steve Rutherford, Board Clerk Bob Page, 

Board Members Darlene Packard, Tom Steele, and ViciLee 
Jacobs telephonically 

 
Members Absent: None 

 
Staff: Fire Chief Scott Freitag, Assistant Chief of Administration Dave 

Tharp, Administrative Assistant III Laura Mowrer 
 

Others in Attendance:   
 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

Chairman Rutherford led the recitation of the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
3. CALL TO THE PUBLIC 

 
Chairman Rutherford opened the meeting for public comments.  
 
No comments. 
 

4. NEW BUSINESS 
 

A. Canvass of Election Results 
 
Board Clerk Page made a motion to accept the results of the November 8, 2016 
election as provided by Yavapai County. Board member Packard seconded the 
motion. MOTION CARRIED 
 
AYES:  Jacobs, Packard, Page, Rutherford, Steele 
NAYS:  None 

Page 14 of 87



Central Yavapai Fire District 
Special Session – November 22, 2016 

Page 2 
 

 

 
 
 

5. ADJOURNMENT 
 

Board Member Jacobs made a motion to adjourn. Board Member Packard seconded 
the motion. MOTION CARRIED 
 
AYES:  Jacobs, Packard, Page, Rutherford, Steele 
NAYS:  None 

 
Chairman Rutherford adjourned the meeting at 10:03 a.m. 
 

 
   
 Date 
 
   
  , Board Clerk 

Page 15 of 87



Page 16 of 87



Page 17 of 87



Page 18 of 87



Page 19 of 87



Page 20 of 87



Page 21 of 87



Page 22 of 87



Page 23 of 87



Page 24 of 87



Page 25 of 87



Page 26 of 87



Page 27 of 87



Page 28 of 87



P
a
g
e
 2

9
 o

f 
8
7



P:\Administration\Finance\Financials\FYE 06-30-17\Rev Exp Graphs\Rev Exp Graphs 2016-11-30.xlsx\Rev Data

CENTRAL YAVAPAI FIRE DISTRICT
REVENUE

Current YTD
Month Revenue Budget

Real Estate Taxes 3,116,363$      14,116,233$    96.47
FDAT 75,219$           313,900$         2.33
UPP Taxes 37,995$           -$                1.18
Tech Services -$                 38,000$           0.00
Grants -$                 65,000$           0.00
Other Income 879$                -$                0.02

3,230,456$      14,533,133$    100.00   

Page 30 of 87



Real Estate Taxes 
96.47% 

FDAT 
2.33% 

UPP Taxes 
1.18% 

Tech Services 
0.00% Grants 

0.00% 

Other Income 
0.02% 

Real Estate Taxes

FDAT

UPP Taxes

Tech Services

Grants

Other Income

            CYFD   
FY 2016 - 2017 

General Fund Revenue 
For the Period Ending 11/30/16 

Page 31 of 87



P:\Administration\Finance\Financials\FYE 06-30-17\Rev Exp Graphs\Rev Exp Graphs 2016-11-30.xlsx\Exp Data

CENTRAL YAVAPAI FIRE DISTRICT
EXPENSES

Current Month  
Actual YTD Budget  

Audit/Accounting, 
Election, Legal, Fire 
Board Expenses

9,592$                       83,500$                     
0.26

Contingency -$                           -$                           0.00
Miscellaneous 216$                          0.01
Fire Authority 
Funding 3,676,329$                14,449,633$              99.73

3,686,138$                14,533,133$              100.00

Page 32 of 87



Audit/Accounting, Election, 
Legal, Fire Board Expenses 

0.26% 

Contingency 
0.00% 

Miscellaneous 
0.01% 

Fire Authority Funding 
99.73% 

Audit/Accounting,
Election, Legal, Fire
Board Expenses

Contingency

Miscellaneous

Fire Authority
Funding

            CYFD   
FY 2016 - 2017 

General Fund Expenditures 
For the Period Ending 11/30/16 

 

Page 33 of 87



Page 34 of 87



Page 35 of 87



Page 36 of 87



 

The Central Yavapai Fire District Board of Directors have reviewed and approved the 

following financial documents to include Income Statements, Balance Sheets, and Bank 

Reconciliations with supporting documents, Revenue and Expenditure Graphs, and 

Cash Flow Projections in compliance with A.R.S. § 48-805, 807. 

CYFD General Fund 

CYFD Bond Debt Service 

 

   
 Fire Board Chairperson Date 
 
 
 
   
 Fire Board Clerk Date 

Page 37 of 87



P
a
g
e
 3

8
 o

f 
8
7



P
a
g
e
 4

0
 o

f 
8
7



P
a
g
e
 4

1
 o

f 
8
7



P
a
g
e
 4

2
 o

f 
8
7



P
a
g
e
 4

3
 o

f 
8
7



P
a
g
e
 4

4
 o

f 
8
7



P
a
g
e
 4

5
 o

f 
8
7



P
a
g
e
 4

6
 o

f 
8
7



P
a
g
e
 4

8
 o

f 
8
7



Page 49 of 87



Page 50 of 87



Page 51 of 87



Page 52 of 87



Page 53 of 87



Page 54 of 87



Page 55 of 87



Page 56 of 87



Page 57 of 87



Page 58 of 87



Page 59 of 87



Page 60 of 87



Page 61 of 87



Page 62 of 87



Page 63 of 87



Page 64 of 87



Page 65 of 87



Page 66 of 87



Page 67 of 87



P
a
g
e
 6

8
 o

f 
8
7



P
a
g
e
 6

9
 o

f 
8
7



P
a
g
e
 7

0
 o

f 
8
7



P
a
g
e
 7

1
 o

f 
8
7



P
a
g
e
 7

2
 o

f 
8
7



P
a
g
e
 7

3
 o

f 
8
7



P
a
g
e
 7

4
 o

f 
8
7



P
a
g
e
 7

5
 o

f 
8
7



P
a
g
e
 7

6
 o

f 
8
7



Page 77 of 87



Page 78 of 87



Page 79 of 87



Page 80 of 87



Page 81 of 87



Page 82 of 87



Page 83 of 87



Effective Date:  04/10/200611/05/2015 Policy Name:  Board Officer Duties 
Revised Date:   
Review Date:  12/01/2016 Policy Number:  3.5 

 

 

Central Yavapai Fire District Board Policy Manual Page 1 of 2 

BOARD OFFICER DUTIES 
 

Relative Information: All Board members are eligible for election and should view the 
election to office as a routine and expected responsibility of Board membership. Arizona 
Revised Statutes require each Board to elect a Chairperson man and a Clerk. While the 
term of office for the Chairperson and Clerk is one (1) year, there is no limitation on the 
number of sequential terms an individual may serve. 

Board officers are generally elected during the month of December, depending on 
ranges of Board terms; officers begin their term in January of the following year. Each 
elected officer takes office immediately and serves until the December first Board 
meeting of the following year, or until a successor is elected. 

The duties of the Chairpersonman include: 

1. Presiding at meetings of the Board of Directors. The Chairpersonman shall 
perform all of the duties prescribed by the Arizona Revised Statutes. The 
Chairpersonman is responsible for ensuring that that business of the public 
meetings is transacted in the proper order and is reasonably expedited observing 
appropriate procedure and decorum. 

2. Consulting with the Fire Chief regarding the preparation of each Board meeting 
agenda. 

3. Participating, along with other Board members, with all the rights of a member to 
discuss issues, make motions, nominate candidates, and to vote. 

4. Calling Special Meetings (study sessions, executive sessions, and/or additional 
regular sessions) of the Board as described by the Arizona Open Meeting Law. 

5. Signing official District documents on behalf of the Board when authorized by the 
Board. 

6. Making appointments as may be required by law and/or for the orderly 
representation of the Board. 

The duties of the Clerk include: 

1. Serving as Chairpersonman in the absence of the Chairpersonman with all the 
powers and duties as described above. The Clerk shall have such other powers 
and duties as a majority of the Board may determine. 

2. Serving on such committees and/or as representative as appointed by the Board 
Chairpersonman. 

3. Ensuring accurate minutes of each Board meeting are taken, transcribed, and 
distributed. Ensuring official minutes are properly authenticated and maintained 
in chronological order. These duties are delegated to staff members under the 
supervision of the Clerk. 

4. Signing on behalf of the District such documents that require two (2) signatures 
or as requested by the Chairpersonman. 

Page 84 of 87



Effective Date:  04/10/200611/05/2015 Policy Name:  Board Officer Duties 
Revised Date:   
Review Date:  12/01/2016 Policy Number:  3.5 

 

 

Central Yavapai Fire District Board Policy Manual Page 2 of 2 

Policy Statement: It shall be the policy of the Board of Directors of Central Yavapai 
Fire District that election to Board office is an accepted obligation of Board membership 
and that the Board may annually elect a Chairpersonman and a Clerk as required by 
State Law. 

Cross References: 

Arizona Revised Statutes A.R.S. §48-805 Fire district; powers and duties 

 A.R.S. §48-803(E) District administered by a 
district board 

Board Policy Manual Policy 3.2 Director Responsibilities 

 Policy 3.7 Filling Board Vacancies 

 

 

Page 85 of 87



Effective Date:  11/05/2015 Policy Name:  Board Officer Duties 
Revised Date:  
Review Date:  12/1/2016 Policy Number:  3.5 

 

 

Central Yavapai Fire District Board Policy Manual Page 1 of 2 

BOARD OFFICER DUTIES 
 

Relative Information: All Board members are eligible for election and should view the 
election to office as a routine and expected responsibility of Board membership. Arizona 
Revised Statutes require each Board to elect a Chairperson and a Clerk. While the term 
of office for the Chairperson and Clerk is one (1) year, there is no limitation on the 
number of sequential terms an individual may serve. 

Board officers are generally elected during the month of December, depending on 
ranges of Board terms. Each elected officer takes office immediately and serves until 
the December Board meeting of the following year, or until a successor is elected. 

The duties of the Chairperson include: 

1. Presiding at meetings of the Board of Directors. The Chairperson shall perform 
all of the duties prescribed by the Arizona Revised Statutes. The Chairperson is 
responsible for ensuring that that business of the public meetings is transacted in 
the proper order and is reasonably expedited observing appropriate procedure 
and decorum. 

2. Consulting with the Fire Chief regarding the preparation of each Board meeting 
agenda. 

3. Participating, along with other Board members, with all the rights of a member to 
discuss issues, make motions, nominate candidates, and to vote. 

4. Calling Special Meetings (study sessions, executive sessions, and/or additional 
regular sessions) of the Board as described by the Arizona Open Meeting Law. 

5. Signing official District documents on behalf of the Board when authorized by the 
Board. 

6. Making appointments as may be required by law and/or for the orderly 
representation of the Board. 

The duties of the Clerk include: 

1. Serving as Chairperson in the absence of the Chairperson with all the powers 
and duties as described above. The Clerk shall have such other powers and 
duties as a majority of the Board may determine. 

2. Serving on such committees and/or as representative as appointed by the Board 
Chairperson. 

3. Ensuring accurate minutes of each Board meeting are taken, transcribed, and 
distributed. Ensuring official minutes are properly authenticated and maintained 
in chronological order. These duties are delegated to staff members under the 
supervision of the Clerk. 

4. Signing on behalf of the District such documents that require two (2) signatures 
or as requested by the Chairperson. 

Page 86 of 87



Effective Date:  11/05/2015 Policy Name:  Board Officer Duties 
Revised Date:  
Review Date:  12/1/2016 Policy Number:  3.5 

 

 

Central Yavapai Fire District Board Policy Manual Page 2 of 2 

Policy Statement: It shall be the policy of the Board of Directors of Central Yavapai 
Fire District that election to Board office is an accepted obligation of Board membership 
and that the Board may annually elect a Chairperson and a Clerk as required by State 
Law. 

Cross References: 

Arizona Revised Statutes A.R.S. §48-805 Fire district; powers and duties 

 A.R.S. §48-803(E) District administered by a 
district board 

Board Policy Manual Policy 3.2 Director Responsibilities 

 Policy 3.7 Filling Board Vacancies 

 

 

Page 87 of 87


	Agenda
	Swear in and Seat Board Members Coversheet.pdf
	Appointment of Chair and Clerk Coversheet.pdf
	2016 11 15 Central Yavapai Minutes Draft.pdf
	2016 11 15 Central Yavapai Minutes EXECUTIVE Draft.pdf
	2016 11 22 Central Yavapai Minutes Draft.pdf
	General Fund Financials.pdf
	Bond Debt Service.pdf
	3.5 Board Officer Duties CYFD redlined.pdf
	3.5 Board Officer Duties CYFD clean.pdf



